



No. 84, Monireth Blvd., Phnom Penh, Cambodia P.O.Box No. 172, Tel: (855-23)217510, Fax: (855-23)212840 E-mail: info@bngkh.net; Website: www.bngkh.net

# **B.N.G\_ Monthly Law Update**

# **CONTENTS**

# I. LAWS & REGULATIONS UPDATE

- Criminal laws & procedures
- Customs & import-export
- Finance
- Forestry
- Investment
- Land & Property
- Naturalization
- Public administration
- **Taxation**
- **Tourism**
- **Treaties**
- Utility

#### II. APPOINTMENTS

#### **III. REGISTRATION**

Prepared by BNG Legal Research & Documentation Department

# March 2008

If you need back copies or our Cambodian law index please access our website at www.bngkh.com

#### I. LAWS & REGULATIONS UPDATE

#### CRIMINAL LAWS AND PROCEDURES

► Royal Kram NS/0208/005 of February 15, 2008, Promulgating the Law on Suppression of Human Trafficking and Sexual Exploitation (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 21, March 19, 2008):

The purpose of this law is to suppress human trafficking and sexual exploitation for protection of human rights and dignity and increase of people's health and welfare and for maintenance, protection and promotion of the national traditional customs. The law also aims at appropriately complying with the UN Protocol on the Prevention, Suppression and Punishment of Human Trafficking, Especially Women and Children Trafficking in addition to the UN Convention against Cross-Border Crimes or Instruments or other International Agreements related to human trafficking signed or ratified by the Kingdom of Cambodia.

Offences of human trafficking, detention, prostitution and children prostitution, obscene pictures or materials, obscene actions against minors under the age of 15 years, provisions for civil compensation, additional provisions, and final provisions are stipulated in detail in this Royal Kram.

#### **CUSTOMS & IMPORT-EXPORT**

► Order N° 01 (RGC) of March 27, 2008 on the Cease of Preventing the Import of Pork and Pigs from Foreign Countries (Ogs, Year 08, N° 23, March 27, 2008):

The Royal Government of Cambodia issued an order to prevent the import of pork and pigs from foreign countries to eliminate the anarchic import of pork and pigs and prevent the spread of infection of animal disease in order to maintain the public health. While there is a ban on the import of pork and pigs, the Royal Government also enforces the ability of management and technical specialized capacity of competent experts to facilitate the business of pork and pigs. The Royal Government of Cambodia, at the present, estimates that experts of the Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries has the capacity for sanitary and phytosanitary inspections on agricultural products. Therefore, the Royal Government of Cambodia sets out a new order as follows:

- 1. To stop preventing the import of pork and pigs from foreign countries. Order No. 01 BB dated August 13, 2007 on the Prevention of the Import of Pork and Pigs from Foreign Countries shall be considered as null and void;
- 2. All imports of pork and pigs as well as agricultural products shall comply with procedures stated in related laws or acts in force;
- 3. The Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries shall strengthen the management and inspection of the import of agricultural products, especially sanitary and phytosanitary inspections on agricultural products; and
- 4. All relevant Ministries/Institutions shall cooperate with the Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries to strictly inspect and implement rules on sanitation and phytosanitation in accordance with agricultural techniques imported from foreign countries.

After receiving this order, the Ministry of Interior, the Ministry of Economy and Finance, the Ministry of Commerce, the Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries, relevant Institutions, and all levels of territorial authorities shall effectively implement it from the date of signing.

#### **FINANCE**

▶ Prakas Nº 120 (MoEF) of February 19, 2008 on The Modification of Prakas No. 218 dated July 28, 2004 on the Establishment of the Public Financial Management System Reform Committee (Ogs, Year 08, Nº 19, March 12, 2008):

The Ministry of Economy and Finance [MoEF], with reference to the requirement of the Public Financial Management System Reform Committee, has made the following decisions:

## **Article 1-**

To modify Article 1 of Prakas No. 218 dated July, 2004 on the Establishment of the Public Financial Management System Reform Committee as follows:

## Article 1 (New):

To create the Public Financial Management Reform Commission comprised of 28 members led by H.E Aun Pornmoniroth, Secretary of State of the MoEF.

#### Article 2-

The words "the Public Financial Management System Reform Committee" used in Prakas No. 218 dated July 28, 2004 shall be replaced with "the Public Financial Management Reform Commission".

#### Article 3-

This Prakas comes into effect from the date of its signature.

▶ Prakas N° 122 (MoEF) of February 19, 2008 on The Establishment of Secretariat of the Public Financial Management Reform Committee (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 19, March 12, 2008):

A Secretariat of the Public Financial Management Reform Committee has been formed under this Prakas. The Secretariat chaired by Mr. Sok Saravud shall have the following duties:

- To be the technical headquarters of the Public Financial Management Reform Committee and the Public Financial Management Reform Commission for preparing and following up the implementation of the public financial management reform program;
- To manage and undertake all tasks of administration, accounting, finance, procurement and relations with Ministries/institutions, development partners, advisors, and specialists in the framework of public financial management reform program led by the Public Financial Management Reform Committee and the Public Financial Management Reform Commission;

- To be a centralized point of advice, coordination and instruction related to the organization and control of implementing the public financial management reform program with Ministries/Institutions, especially with public financial management reform working group as well as Departments and other Units under the supervision of the Ministry of Economy and Finance; and
- To be a centralized point of consolidating reports from all public financial management reform working groups of all Ministries/Institutions and from Departments and Units under the Ministry of Economy and Finance.

The Chairman, Deputy Chairman, and officials of the Secretariat of the Public Financial Management Reform Committee shall perform their duties under working conditions and get benefits in accordance with employment abilities and contracts determined by the Chief of the Public Financial Management Reform Committee. The Secretariat may recruit contracting officials, not civil servants, to serve its works agreed by the Chief of the Public Financial Management Reform Committee.

#### **FORESTRY**

► Sub-Decree N° 26 (RGC) of March 25, 2008 on The Measures to Provide the Right for Use of the State Forestland for Plantation (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 23, March 27, 2008):

The purpose of this Sub-Decree is to regulate rules and provide the rights to use the State forestland for plantation across the Kingdom of Cambodia. This Sub-Decree also aims at increasing forest services and production to ensure the maintenance and protection of forest cover and to supply timber for the general use in accordance with the national forest management principles and plan.

Responsible competent authorities and institutions, conditions and procedures of proposal and approval on providing the rights for the State forestland use for plantation, agreement on granting the right to use the State forestland for plantation, rights and obligations of assignees for the State forestland use for plantation, planted forest management plan, and final provisions are stated in detail in this Sub-Decree

#### **INVESTMENT**

► Sub-Decree N° 24 (RGC) of March 17, 2008 on The Establishment of Sihanoukville Special Economic Zones [SEZ] (Part A) (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 21, March 19, 2008):

The RGC, according to the proposal of the Council for the Development of Cambodia, has established the **SIHANOUKVILLE SEZ**, located in Pou Theurn Village, Sangkat Beth Trang, and Smach Deng Village, Sangkat Ream, Khan Prey Nob, Sihanoukville Municipality.

The Sihanoukville SEZ (Part A) is 11,309,600-square-meters in seize. The plan, location, boundary and geography in Annex are agreed by relevant Ministries and are attached to this Sub-Decree. All territories in the area of the

Sihanoukville SEZ (Part A) as defined above are the legal private possession of a company.

The organization and function of this SEZ shall be under the scope of laws and regulations of the Kingdom of Cambodia.

► Sub-Decree N° 25 (RGC) of March 17, 2008 on The Establishment of Sihanoukville Special Economic Zones [SEZ] (Parts B,C,D,E and F) (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 21, March 19, 2008):

The RGC, according to the proposal of the Council for the Development of Cambodia, has established the **SIHANOUKVILLE SEZ**, located in Pou Theurn Village, Sangkat Beth Trang, and Smach Deng Village, Sangkat Ream, Khan Prey Nob, Sihanoukville Municipality.

The Sihanoukville SEZ (Parts B, C, D, E and F) is 9,310,800-square-meters in seize. The plan, location, boundary and geography in Annex are agreed by relevant Ministries and are attached to this Sub-Decree. All territories in the area of the Sihanoukville SEZ (Parts B, C, D, E and F) as defined above are the legal private possession of a company.

The organization and function of this SEZ shall be under the scope of laws and regulations of the Kingdom of Cambodia.

► Announcement N° 008 (MoEF) of March 14, 2008 [on The Slot Machine License] (Ogs, Year 08, N° 23, March 27, 2008):

The Ministry of Economy and Finance [MEF] informs all companies or investors who are natural person or legal entities that the Royal Government has authorized companies or investors – natural person principally approved by the Royal Government – to do business of all kinds of electronic and mechanic games (slot machines). If they have yet to commence the business, they will come to complete the application form for a license for that business at the MEF within 6 months from the date of notification to the end of July 2008.

The MEF shall stop granting the slot machine license to new slot machine companies.

The MEF hopes and trusts that after receiving this announcement, all directors of companies or investors who are natural person or legal entity shall try to effectively implement this instruction.

#### LAND & PROPERTY

► Sub-Decree N° 22 (RGC) of March 07, 2008 on the Transfer of 11,158-hectares of Koh Kong Land (External Koh Kong) Located in Koh Kong Village, Koh Kong District, Koh Kong Province (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 19, March 12, 2008):

Under this Sub-Decree, 11,158-hectares of Koh Kong Land (External Koh Kong) Located in Koh Kong Village, Koh Kong District, Koh Kong Province has been transferred to State private property for a 99-year investment lease.

The above transferred land shall be reorganized by the Council for the Development of Cambodia, the Ministry of Economy and Finance, the Ministry of Environment, the Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries, the Ministry of Interior, the Ministry of National Defense, the Koh Kong Provincial Hall, and relevant Specialized Departments in accordance with the Royal Government's policy.

► Sub-Decree N° 27 (RGC) of March 25, 2008 on Cutting, Transferring and Granting the Right to Occupy the Land in Village 1, Sangkat Lek 3, Khan Mittapheap, Sihanoukville Municipality (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 24, March 31, 2008):

The Royal Government of Cambodia, according to its requirement, has decided to remove 16-hectares of land from the 92-hectares of land in Village 1, Sangkat Lek 3, Khan Mittapheap, Sihanoukville Municipality, which was leased to Thai Bunrong Company.

The 16-hectares of land –the State public property – shall be transferred to State private property, in which 13.75-hectares of land shall be divided and entitled to people of 125 families in Village 1, Sangkat Lek 3, Khan Mittapheap, Sihanoukville Municipality for occupation.

#### **NATURALIZATION**

- ▶ Royal Decree NS/0208/155 of February 20, 2008 on the Granting of Cambodian Nationality by Naturalization to Mr. KOH TEAK HUAT, Singaporean Origin, Singaporean Nationality, Born in Singapore (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 19, March 12, 2008).
- ▶ Royal Decree NS/0208/180 of February 27, 2008 on the Granting of Cambodian Nationality by Naturalization to Mr. HONG JUNG SOON, Korean Origin, Korean Nationality, Born in Seoul, Republic of Korea (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 19, March 12, 2008).
- ▶ Royal Decree NS/0208/181 of February 27, 2008 on the Granting of Cambodian Nationality by Naturalization to Mr. SHIN HYUN SOOK, Korean Origin, Korean Nationality, Born in Seoul, Republic of Korea (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 19, March 12, 2008).
- ▶ Royal Decree NS/0308/210 of March 05, 2008 on the Granting of Cambodian Nationality by Naturalization to Mr. WANG YI, New Name WAAN SOKHA, Chinese Origin, Chinese Nationality, Born in Hubei Province, China (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 23, March 27, 2008).
- ▶ Royal Decree NS/0308/211 of March 05, 2008 on the Granting of Cambodian Nationality by Naturalization to Mr. CHAN SHEK FAI, Chinese Origin, British Nationality, Born in Hong Kong City, China (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 23, March 27, 2008).

#### **PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION**

► Sub-Decree N° 20 (RGC) of February 29, 2008 on The Addition of Some Departments of the Ministry of Economy and Finance (Ogs, Year 08, N° 17, March 04, 2008):

The purpose of this Sub-Decree is to add some Departments to the content and structures as stated in Sub-Decree No. 04 dated January 20, 2000 on the Organization and Functioning of the Ministry of Economy and Finance.

The following two Departments have been added under the Ministry of Economy and Finance:

- Department of Affection Resolution from Development Projects; and
- Department of Information Technology.

The structure and duties of the two Departments are stipulated in detail in this Sub-Decree.

► Sub-Decree N° 21 (RGC) of March 03, 2008 on the Logo of the Anti-Corruption Unit (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 18, March 08, 2008):

The purpose of this Sub-Decree is to form the logo of the Anti-Corruption Unit of the Council of Ministers for official use. The logo shall be used for:

- The working place of the Anti-Corruption Unit;
- The official letterheads of the Anti-Corruption Unit;
- The collar decorations of civil servants and armed forces of the Anti-Corruption Unit; and
- The Anti-Corruption Unit and other cases.

The detailed stipulation and description of type, size and color of the logo are found in this present Prakas.

#### **TAXATION**

▶ Directive N° 001 (MoEF) of March 03, 2008 on The Integration of Tax and Non-Fiscal Liabilities (Ogs, Year 08, N⁰ 19, March 12, 2008):

In order to make the integration of payable tax and non-fiscal liabilities easy, the Ministry of Economy and Finance would like to issue the following instructions:

- 1. At the end of the period of 2007, the Tax Department, the Customs and Excise Department and the Non-Tax Revenue Department shall send total calculation reports on tax ad non-fiscal abilities payable from companies, enterprises, business people, and other Units by December 31, 2007 to the National Treasury to be recorded in State accounting numbers. The payable liability figures shall be divided between 2007 and the previous year;
- 2. The National Treasury, pursuant to the liability figure report, shall record the liabilities in the debit account of the taxpayer's account (No. 411 and 412) and record the credit in the unearned revenue receivable account (No. 482). The figure of tax and non-fiscal liabilities shall be shown in the financial statement prepared by the National Treasury at the end of 2007.

- 3. At the beginning of the next period, the National Treasury shall conduct the reversing entry of numbers recorded in the end of the previous accounting period by recording the debit in the unearned revenue receivable account (No. 482) and the credit in the accounting number of the taxpayer's account (No. 411 and 412);
- 4. When receiving the tax and non-fiscal revenue liabilities, the Tax Department, the Customs and Excise Department and the Non-Tax Revenue Department shall record and follow up the internal affairs by reducing the paid liabilities.

After receiving this Directive, Please His Excellency Delegate of the Royal Government in charge of the Director of the Customs and Excise Department, His Excellency Delegate of the Royal Government in charge of the Chief of the National Treasury, the Chief of the Tax Department and the Chief of the Non-Tax Revenue Department effectively implement it.

▶ Prakas N° 199 (MoEF) of February 28, 2008 on The Implementation of Program for Elimination of Import Tax and Non-Tax Trade Barrier in ASEAN for Part 1 of the List of Information and Communication Technology (ICT) (Ogs, Year 08, N⁰ 23, March 27, 2008):

The Ministry of Economy and Finance, pursuant to its letter No. 4605 dated September 10, 2002 on the proposal for approval on the ICT product list and program for elimination of import tax and non-tax trade barrier in ASEAN for Part 1 of the list of the ICT, and the decision making of Samdech Prime Minister on September 10, 2002, has decided to declare the implementation of the program for elimination of import tax and non-tax trade barrier in ASEAN for part 1 of the list of the ICT and Samdech Prime Minister's decision on the implementation of e-ASEAN agreement framework (e-ASEAN) on September 10, 2002.

In order to effect the implementation of obligations in e-ASEAN agreement, the Ministry of Economy and Finance will continue to issue instructions.

▶ Announcement Nº 010 (MoEF) of March 19, 2008 on The Formalities for Medium-Size Taxpayers to Pay Taxes at Provincial/Municipal Tax Branches (Ogs, Year 08, N⁰ 23, March 27, 2008):

The Ministry of Economy and Finance [MEF] has the honour of informing all Ladies/ Gentlemen who are managing directors or owners of enterprise or companies that from October 2004, taxpayers – enterprises and companies – shall be under the management of the medium taxpayer management entity of the medium and large taxpayer management office in Phnom Penh, and pay taxes at the National Bank of Cambodia.

In order to comply with the program for the public financial management reform and aim at the enlargement of all kinds of tax collections through the National Bank of Cambodia, the MEF would like to inform Ladies/Gentlemen – managing directors or owners of enterprise or companies under medium taxpayer management regime of the declaration regime [real regime] in all provinces/municipalities – that they shall directly pay the taxes at Provincial/Municipal National Bank of Cambodia from May 02, 2008.

The MEF would like to regulate formalities of paying taxes at all provinces/municipalities of all enterprises, companies and owners under the management of provincial/municipal tax branches as follows:

- 1. To directly pay taxes in cash at Provincial/Municipal National Bank of Cambodia; and
- 2. To pay taxes by means of bank account transfer to the account of provincial/Municipal Tax Branches. For the transferred account number, the enterprises, companies and owners shall contact with Provincial/Municipal Tax Branches.

After paying the taxes, Ladies/Gentlemen shall receive the invoice issued by the Provincial/Municipal National Bank of Cambodia by attaching it with the tax declaration and then submit them to Provincial/Municipal Tax Branches in accordance with deadline stated in the Law on Taxation.

#### **TOURISM**

▶ Decision N° 34 (CoM) of March 01, 2008 on The Establishment of Commission for Leading the Sustainable Development Project of Run Ta Ek and Kompong Pluk Natural Village Areas (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 17, March 04, 2008):

A Commission for Leading the Sustainable Development Project of Run Ta Ek and Kompong Pluk Natural Village Areas has been formed under this Decision. The Commission led by H.E Bun Naryth, Director General of the ABSARA National Authority shall have the following duties:

- To lead, control and advise related documents for preparation of the sustainable development project of Run Ta Ek and Kompong Pluk Natural Village areas studied and organized by the Technical Working Group; and
- To hold discussions and make a recommendation to the Chief of the ABSARA National Authority for review and approval.

After there is an approval from the Chief, the Commission shall closely cooperate with Siem Reap provincial authorities to implement this project smoothly.

▶ Decision N° 06 (RGC) of March 06, 2008 on The Establishment of Working Group for Study and Evaluation of Kbal Chhay Clean Water Reservoir Development Areas and Resort in Sihanoukville Municipality (Ogs, Year 08, N⁰ 19, March 12, 2008):

A Working Group for study and evaluation of Kbal Chhay clean water reservoir development areas and resort in Sihanoukville Municipality has been formed under this Decision. The Working Group led by H.E Svay Sitha, Under Secretary of State of the Council of Ministers and Secretary General of the National Authority of Land Dispute, shall have the following duties:

 To generally advise the implementation of projects approved by the Royal Government for sustainable management of Kbal Chhay slope areas in Sihanoukville municipality;

- To coordinate with project owners and relevant authorities to successfully implement projects in the Kbal Chhay slope areas; and
- To study and estimate general affections of the whole Kbal Chhay slope areas and push for the cooperation between Units and relevant institutions to ensure a sustainable management of Kbal Chhay slope areas.

#### **TREATIES**

▶ Royal Kram NS/0208/010 of February 27, 2008, Promulgating the Law on The Adoption of Agreement between the Kingdom of Cambodia and Japan for the Liberalization, Promotion and Protection of Investment (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 17, March 04, 2008):

The Law on the Adoption of Agreement between the Kingdom of Cambodia and Japan for the Liberalization, Promotion and Protection of Investment as adopted by the National Assembly on January 16, 2008 at the seventh session of the third legislature and as ratified by the Senate as to its entire form and legality on February 01, 2008 at the fourth plenary session of the second legislature was promulgated under this Royal Kram to which the entire content of this law and Agreement was attached.

▶ Royal Kram NS/0208/009 of February 27, 2008, Promulgating the Law on the Adoption of ASEAN Protocol 1 on the Designation of Transit Transport Routes and Facilities for Implementation of ASEAN Framework Agreement on Facilitation of Inter-State Transport (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 19, March 12, 2008):

The Law on the Adoption of ASEAN Protocol 1 on the Designation of Transit Transport Routes and Facilities for Implementation of ASEAN Framework Agreement on Facilitation of Inter-State Transport as adopted by the National Assembly on January 16, 2008 at the seventh session of the third legislature and as ratified by the Senate as to its entire form and legality on February 01, 2008 at the fourth plenary session of the second legislature was promulgated under this Royal Kram to which the entire content of this law and Protocol was attached.

#### **UTILITIES**

► Circular N° 01 (RGC) of March 12, 2008 on The Implementation of Measures to Save Electric Power (Ogs, Year 08, N° 20, March 15, 2008):

In order to save the electricity consumption at all State Ministries/Institutions and provinces/municipalities, the Royal Government has decided to issue the following instructions:

- 1. All State Ministries/Institutions and provinces/municipalities shall take part in saving the electricity consumption by implementing the use of electricity instruments to save power.
- 2. The Ministry of Interior and territorial authorities shall cooperate with the Ministry of Industry, Mine and Energy and the EDC [Electricité du

Cambodge] to eliminate the illegal theft of electric current connection from the electricity network.

- 3. The EDC shall take a strict action against any officers stealing electric current connections or reducing electric consumption quantity.
- 4. The EDC shall inform electricity consumers about the difficult time of supplying the electricity power and ask them to stop or suspend the use of some instruments while the consumption is high.
- 5. The Ministry of Industry, Mine and Energy shall issue a particular detailed instruction on how to save electric power consumption.
- 6. The Ministry of Information shall work together with the Ministry of Industrial, Mine and Energy to prepare and widely publish the power consumption saving program by radio, television and newspapers to the electricity consumers.

After receiving this Circular, all State Ministries/Institutions and provinces/municipalities shall increase cooperation to effectively implement it

#### II. APPOINTMENTS

- ▶ Royal Decree NS/0208/172 of February 27, 2008 on The Appointment of H.E Chheang Von as Advisor to the Royal Government of Cambodia with the rank equal to Minister (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 17, March 04, 2008).
- ► Royal Decree NS/0208/176 of February 27, 2008 on The Appointment of Mr. Ngouv Saren and Mr. Kim Pheara as Okhna (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 17, March 04, 2008).
- ▶ Royal Decree NS/0308/230 of March 07, 2008 on The Appointment of H.E Yoem Yean as Advisor to the Ministry of Health with the rank equal to Under Secretary of State (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 21, March 19, 2008).
- ▶ Royal Decree NS/0308/231 of March 07, 2008 on The Appointment of H.E Chhorn Praloeng as Member of the Council of Jurists with the rank equal to Under Secretary of State (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 21, March 19, 2008).
- ► Royal Decree NS/0308/242 of March 08, 2008 on The Appointment of H.E Phean Huor as Secretary General of the Financial Investigation Unit with the rank equal to Director General (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 21, March 19, 2008).
- ► Royal Decree NS/0308/257 of March 08, 2008 on The Appointment of H.E Pheat Saret as Under Secretary of State of Information (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 22, March 23, 2008).

- ▶ Royal Decree NS/0308/283 of March 19, 2008 on The Appointment of Mr. Heng Tola as Okhna (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 22, March 23, 2008).
- ► Royal Decree NS/0308/292 of March 19, 2008 on The Appointment of Mr. Long Sarorn as Okhna (Ogs, Year 08, N<sup>0</sup> 22, March 23, 2008).

# REGISTRATION

# **Testimonials (MOC) on The Commercial Registration of Some Companies:**

The purpose of these testimonials is to certify that all the following listed companies have been properly registered for a term of 99 years under Cambodian laws and recognized as legal entities starting from their registration dates onwards.

Testimonial Nº	Registration Dates	Company's Names	Company's Address
1525	April 20, 2007	AZIMUT CO., LTD.	Cambodiana Hotel, Room 12 A, Sisowath Street, Sangkat Chaktomukh, Khan Daun Penh, Phnom Penh
1526	April 20, 2007	ASIA CAMBO DEVELOPMENT & INVESTMENT Co., Ltd.	No. 47, Street 122, Sangkat Mitapheap, Khan 7 Makara, Phnom Penh
1527	April 20, 2007	S. COREA CO., LTD.	No. 169 FEo, Street 154, Sangkat Phsar Kandal II, Khan Daun Penh, Phnom Penh
1528	April 20, 2007	EXCELLENCE CAPITAL GROUP CO., LTD.	No. 45, Prech Soramarith Street, Sangkat Chaktomukh, Khan Daun Phnom Penh
1529	April 20, 2007	CENTRAL LAND (CAMBODIA) Co., Ltd.	No. 1159, National Road 2, Group 15, Sangkat Chak Angre Leu, Khan Meanchey, Phnom Penh
1531	April 20, 2007	EASY TRAVEL (CAMOBDIA) CO., LTD.	No. 164 Eo, Street 63, Sangkat Boeung Keng Kang I, Khan Chamkar Morn, Phnom Penh
1532	April 20, 2007	ORCHID RESORTS & SPAS Ltd.	Cambodiana Hotel, Room 350, Prech Sisowath (313) Street, Sangkat Chaktomukh, Khan Daun Penh Phnom Penh
1533	April 23, 2007	FLASH TECH Co., Ltd.	No. 7 B, Street 280, Sangkat Olympic, Khan Chamkar Morn, Phnom Penh
1534	April 23, 2007	P – P – I TRAVEL & TOURS Co., Ltd.	No. 458, Street 128 (Kampuchea Krom), Sangkat Mittapheap, Khan 7 Makara, Phnom Penh
1535	April 23, 2007	REAKSA SAMBATH Co., Ltd.	No. 766, Kamkor Village, Svay Paor Commune, Battambang District, Bamttambang Province
1538	April 23, 2007	(Cambodia) Malaysia Strategic JV Corp	No. 26 Eo, Street 253 <sup>1</sup> 160, Group 19, Sangkat Toeuk Laak II, Khan Tuol Kork, Phnom Penh
1539	April 23, 2007	CRECO Co., Ltd.	Room No. 311-313, Third Floor, Building at the corner between Monivong Blvd, and Phsar Degoul Street, Sangkat Monorum, Khan 7 Maraka, Phnom Penh

1540	April 23, 2007	DO MA COM Co., Ltd.	Chamroeun Pal Village, Modal 1, Sangkat Boeung Toumpun, Khan
			Meanchey, Phnom Penh
1541	April 23, 2007	Representative Office of "INTERNATIONAL FUMIGATION INSPECTION JS COMPANY"	No. 140 BEo, Street 134, Sangkat Veal Vong, Khan 7 Maraka, Phnom Penh
1547	April 23, 2007	Phou & Rickmers Rice (Cambodia) Limited.	No. 108, Russian Federation Blvd, Sangkat Touek Laak I, Khan Tuol Kork, Phnom Penh
1548	April 23, 2007	UNICAMKO INTERNATIONAL Co., Ltd.	No. 93, Street 95 \(^{\pm}\) Street 432, Sangkat Boeung Traback, Khan Chamkar Morn, Phnom Penh
1578	April 24, 2007	V P K FINEXIMCO PTY AND CHIEN FENG ENTERPRISE LTD.	No. 153 E1, Street 128, Sangkat Mittapheap, Khan 7 Maraka, Phnom Penh
1582	April 24, 2007	(CAMBODIA) CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS WHOLE SALE Co., Ltd.	No. 10, Street 271, Sangkat Toeuk Laak III, Khan Tuol Kork, Phnom Penh
1585	April 24, 2007	MITSU MOTORS (CAMBODIA) Co., Ltd.	No. 27 E1, Street 5, Sangkat Phsar Kandal I, Khan Daun Penh, Phnom Penh
1586	April 24, 2007	GLOBAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION	No. 29, Street 388, Sangkat Tuol Svay Prey I, Khan Chamkar Morn, Phnom Penh
1588	April 24, 2007	CHEYYO Co., Ltd.	No. 297-299, Prech Norodom Blvd, Sangkat Boeng Keng Kang I, Khan Chamkar Morn, Phnom Penh
1589	April 25, 2007	T. E. G CO., LTD.	No. 8, Street 75, Sangkat Boueng Reang, Khan Daun Penh, Phom Penh
1591	April 25, 2007	EUROPA INVEST Ltd.	Village 2, Sangkat 3, Khan Mittapheap, Sihanoukville Municipality
1593	April 25, 2007	URBAN TRADING LIMITED.	No. 13 B, Street 217, Sangkat Toeuk Thla, Khan Russey Keo, Phnom Penh
1595	April 25, 2007	CHHONG SOON GROUP Co., Ltd.	No. 02, Street 70, Sangkat Strach Chak, Khan Daun Penh, Phnom Penh
1597	April 26, 2007	REXWELL ENGINEERING (CAMBODIA) LTD.	No. 58, Street 322, Sangkat Boeung Keng Kang I, Khan Chamkar Morn, Phnom Penh
1599	April 26, 2007	YOLK (CAMBODIA) Co., Ltd.	No. 62 AEo, Street 125, Sangkat Veal Vong, Khan 7 Makara, Phnom Penh
1601	April 26, 2007	Representative Office of " CH M C Cambodian Representative Office"	No. 396, Street 93, Sangkat Boeung Keng Kang I, Khan Chamkar Morn, Phnom Penh
1602	April 26, 2007	MEKONG CREEN FARM Co., Ltd.	No. 155 ABEo, Street 245, Sangkat Tuol Svay Prey I, Khan Chamkar Morn, Phom Penh
1603	April 26, 2007	GOLDEN PROPERTIES Co., Ltd.	No. 35 CD, Prech Sihanouk Street, Sangkat Chaktomukh, Khan Daun Penh, Phnom Penh
1605	April 26, 2007	ASIA FLOURISH TOURS & TRADING Co., Ltd.	No. 12 B, Street 112, Sangkat Phsar Depot III, Khan Tuol Kork, Phom Penh
1607	April 26, 2007	SIEMREAP MEANCHEY Co., Ltd.	No. 0765, Group 25, Banteay Chas Village, Slorkram Commune, Siem Reap District, Siem Reap Province

# **Abbreviations**

Co., Ltd. Company Limited

CoM Council of Ministers

EDC Electricité du Cambodge

H.E Excellencies

ICT Information and Communication Technology

MAFF Ministry of Agriculture Forestry and Fisheries

MEF Ministry of Economics and Finance

MFN Most Favored Nation

MoEYS Ministry of Education, Youth and Sport

MoE Ministry of Environment

MIME Ministry of Industry, Mines and Energy

MND Ministry of National Defense

MoP Ministry of Planning

MoI Ministry of Interior

MoJ Ministry of Justice

MLMUPC The Ministry of Land Management, Urban Planning and Construction

MNASRI Ministry of National Assembly-Senate Relations & Inspection

MPTC Ministry of Post and Telecommunication

MRD Ministry of Rural Development

MWRM Ministry of Water Resources and Meteorology

MLVT Ministry of Labour and Vocational Training

MPWT Ministry of Public Work and Transport

MSAVYR Ministry of Social Affairs, Veteran and Youth Rehabilitation

NACD National Authority for Combating Drugs

NBC National Bank of Cambodia

NCDM National Committee for Disaster Management

NGOs Non-Government Organizations

Ogs Official Gazette

RGC Royal Government of Cambodia

SEZ Special Economic Zones

Most of the laws and regulations in this B.N.G- Monthly Law Update are based on the source from the "Official Gazette of Laws & Regulations weekly issued by the Council of Ministers. Translations into English and/or French usually appear one to three months after promulgation of the law or regulation. The Council of Jurists currently maintains a web page of Cambodian laws and regulations at: <a href="http://www.bigpond.com.kh/Council\_of\_Jurists/">http://www.bigpond.com.kh/Council\_of\_Jurists/</a>